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	1. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this? (like, from India or Canada)
	Yes. The RFP is open to all agencies that, at the time Phase I Submittals are due, meet the Minimum Agency Qualifications described in RFP #50135, section I.F., which include having an office in California at the time of the bid.

	2. Whether we need to come over there for meetings?
	Yes. The evaluation process for this RFP requires semi-finalists to attend a Briefing Day which will be held at Lottery headquarters in Sacramento, California pending developments with COVID-19. In addition, services outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Services require the agency partner to meet with Lottery Sales & Marketing staff at Lottery headquarters upon request.

	3. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada)?
	The RFP identifies tasks that require participating agencies to attend meetings at the Lottery headquarters.  This also includes meetings and competitive evaluations held at the agency’s California office. Having an office in California that is maintained for the duration of the contract will meet the Minimum Agency Qualifications for the RFP.

	4. Can we submit the proposals via email?
	The Lottery will be amending this RFP to address this question. Agencies will be allowed to upload their proposals to a secure Lottery site. Please see Amendment 1 for additional information.

	5. How is media purchased now for the African American consumer market since the service is deemed as optional?
	The majority of media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath. 

	6. What is the anticipated budget for this contract?
	The estimated total contract expenditure for the initial five-year term of this contract is $15 million, which does not include media buying. Additional funds for promotions and experiential marketing may be included in the overall budget, based on strategic objectives.

	7. What has been the African American advertising and marketing budget for the past three years?
	The Lottery’s advertising budget for this segment has historically been approximately $2 million annually, inclusive of fees, production, and media.

	8. What has been the African American media spend for the past three years?
	The dedicated media spend for AA market for the past 3 years has averaged $950 thousand a year with $131 thousand media spend in FY 19/20. Currently, the majority of media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath.

	9. Since media needs to be billed at net costs, are media buying companies allowed to markup media or must their fees be covered in the staffing plan?
	The majority of media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath. If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP.

	10. If two companies submit as a joint venture, will four references be needed from each agency or can it be a combination of the agencies in the joint venture?
	Yes, list four client references (name, title, company, address, telephone, email and fax number) for each agency. Lottery representatives may speak with your references about your performance and the effectiveness of the creative.

	11. If two companies submit as a joint venture, do they both need to complete attachments one (sections A, B and C)?
	Yes, each Agency must include Agency Fact Sheet, Attachment 1 in its Mandatory Submittals and Review Criteria Phase I package. Please refer to page 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 3. Agency Fact Sheet (Attachment 1) for the clarification.

	12. Under minimum agency qualifications, number three, it discusses billings. Does an agency need to have $3 million in billings per year for 2016, 2017 and 2018 in order to meet qualifications? Do a certain percentage of the billings need to be attributed to advertising?
	Yes, qualified agencies need to have at least $3 million in annual billings. Twenty-five percent of the agency’s marketing and advertising work should be AA dedicated marketing efforts. The Lottery does not have a minimum percentage of the billings that needs to be attributed to advertising.

	13. In attachment 1, should the media spend breakdown be based on the most recent year of 2019?
	Yes, use 2019 to chart your agency’s current spending by media, providing rough figures and percentages to illustrate your agency’s scope and nature of services.

	14. Scope of services in attachment A list retail marketing, experiential, grassroots, word-of-mouth, etc. as opportunities to be analyzed and strategies and tactics recommended. How often do these integrated marketing opportunities arise and is the agency responsible for execution?
	The Lottery continually develops integrated marketing efforts for campaigns and the agency is expected to develop recommendations on strategies and provide insight on how that can apply across any of our marketing programs for AA audience. Execution may be done by the agency or in partnership with other partner agencies.

	15. Media and public relations are included as optional requirements, but are listed as a part of the evaluation criteria. How much consideration is given to media and PR for evaluation? Integrated marketing capabilities are part of the evaluation criteria. How much weight is given to the integrated marketing capabilities of promotions, retail marketing, experiential, grass roots and word of mouth in terms of the evaluation criteria?
	There is no specific weight assigned to each of the evaluation criteria, beyond the order of priority. Media and PR are part of Optional Associated Services while Integrated Marketing is at the core of the Scope of Services. Please refer to Exhibit A – Scope of Services, 3. Integrated Marketing for clarification.

	16. How should the creative be submitted for case studies?
	Please refer to page 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 5. Three Campaign Case Histories for clarification.

	17. For creative examples, what type of videos are acceptable for submission?
	Please refer to page 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 5. Three Campaign Case Histories for clarification.

	18. For creative samples, what format is acceptable for the 10-minute creative video?
	Agencies must submit, in accordance with section IV. Phase I Submittals Packaging and Delivery, an agency profile that includes a recent video creative, not to exceed 10 minutes in length and provide a written version/transcript of the content. Video samples must be compatible with Windows 10 software.  

	19. How should the written version/transcript of the content for the creative video be submitted and where in the submission should it be included?
	Agencies must submit, in accordance with section IV. Phase I Submittals Packaging and Delivery, an agency profile that includes a recent video creative, not to exceed 10 minutes in length and provide a written version/transcript of the content.
Please refer to page 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 4. Agency Profile for the clarification.

	20. How are sales tracked?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP.

	21. Do you have research about past campaigns and the consumer that can be shared?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP.

	22. If the “Safe at Home” order is still in place for the May 8 deadline, would an electronic submission be considered?
	The Lottery will be amending this RFP to address this question. Agencies will be allowed to upload their proposals to a secure Lottery site. Please see Amendment 1 for additional information.

	23. If the “Safe at Home” order is still in place for the May 8 deadline, would an electronic signature suffice for requested forms and letters?
	The Lottery will be amending this RFP to address this question. Agencies will be allowed to upload their proposals to a secure Lottery site. Please see Amendment 1 for additional information.

	24. If the “Safe at Home” order is still in place during Phase II, how would the face-to-face meeting be conducted?
	The Lottery will be advising on Phase II face-to-face meetings in its Semi Finalist Brief.

	25. Are there page limits for the introduction letter and Attachment 1, letter d?
	There are no page limits for the Introduction letter and Attachment 1. Please refer to page 10 and 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 2. Introduction Letter and 3. Agency Fact Sheet (Attachment 1) for clarification.

	26. Would submitting cases not originating as California projects place us at a disadvantage compared to agencies that may have had assignments in California?
	No, please submit three case histories of recent and relevant campaign work that showcase the agency’s overall AACM expertise. Please refer to page 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 5. Three Campaign Case Histories for clarification.

	27. What is the approval structure for the deliverables process setup?
	Please refer to page 12 Section II. Proposal Requirements, B. Phase I Rated Evaluation section for clarification. 

	28. Is there a preference to have an AOR in Southern California?
	No, however, qualified agency should preferably have an existing office in California and maintain it for the duration of the contract.

	29. Will the AA AOR need a media planning and buying team as part of the scope of work?
	No, all media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath.

	30. Will the AA AOR need to provide the digital and social media approach?
	Social Media is managed collaboratively internally and with other agencies led by the Lottery. For AACM we are looking to the agency to contribute with a full strategy inclusive of all the elements to reach the AACM. Community management is handled in-house.

	31. What was the average yearly fee for the AA AOR in regards to previous CA Lottery work?
	The Lottery is not releasing this information currently. This is proprietary data that is determined by the outcome of the contract negotiation and the Scope of Work.

	32. Are the CA Lottery core values relative to the agency a part of the CA Lottery AA AOR appointment?
	Clarified by the bidder on 4/9/2020 - we were attempting to derive what Lottery values need to align with the agencies.   We were hoping to better ascertain the Lottery values that will be part of the judging/scoring.
Please refer to the RFP section II. Proposal Requirements, B. Phase I Rated Evaluation for clarification.

	33. All the deliverables (Creative, Media, Productions) all inclusive of the fee media?  Clarified by the bidder on 4/10/2020 - The question is designed to ask if the agency Fee when awarded is the only source of revenue. No additional revenue coming from production, media or creative services.
	Compensation model includes monthly Retainer Fee and Production Mark-Up (net) that are negotiated as part of Staff Plan and Compensation during the Phase III of the RFP.

	34. What will the final proposal setup/engagement program look like?  In person at the Lottery HQ or at the agency?
	The Lottery will be advising on the Briefing Day and Finalist work sessions and presentations in its Finalist Work Assignment pending COVID-19 developments.

	35. Will there be any agency visits as part of the process?
	Given current COVID-19 situation the Lottery will be advising on Phase II face-to-face meetings in its Semi Finalist Brief.

	36. What other types of client work or marketing categories do you feel is the same or close to CA Lottery as a verticle [sic]?
	Relevant experience would include gaming, entertainment, and/or low-cost consumer goods.

	37. Is there a preferred format for the submission content?  For example, can the format of the submission and intro letter be in Powerpoint/presentation format or does it have to be in Word?
	The introduction letter must be signed by a representative identified in Attachment 2, Certification, as legally authorized to contractually bind the agency. The introduction letter must confirm the agency’s qualifications and interest in participating in this solicitation. Please refer to page 10 and 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I for clarification.

	38. Should the package contents be collated?
	Yes, the package should follow the sequence identified in the RFP. Please refer to page 10 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals for the clarification.

	39. Has there been any discussion around adjusting the format of the deliverables given the impact of Covid19 on non-essential businesses? Specifically, the RFP asks for hard copy submission and many of us don’t have access to printers, packing materials, etc.?
	The Lottery will be amending this RFP to address this question. Agencies will be allowed to upload their proposals to a secure Lottery site. Please see Amendment 1 for additional information.

	40. Need clarification on written version/transcript of video creative content in Agency Profile section – Does the hard copy submission need to describe exactly what is being shown in the video or just tell the story?
	Written version/transcript should include script and other descriptive information about the video content and support story about the agency illustrated by its work, which is not limited to TV.  Please refer to page 11 of Section II. Proposal Requirements, A. Mandatory Submittals Phase I, 4. Agency Profile for clarification.

	41. Can you confirm that third-party media/research vendors are not considered a joint proposal or elaborate what constitutes a joint proposal?
	The Lottery will consider any type of joint proposal that meets the requirements of the Scope of Work. When submitting joint proposals at least one of the agencies must independently meet all of the Minimum Bidder Qualifications listed in Item C. Please refer to the page 9 of General Information, W. Joint Proposals for clarification. Third-party media/research vendors not entering joint proposal are considered sub-contractors.

	42. Is there any consumer research focused on the AA segment that you can share?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	43. Can you submit a joint proposal with a partner company as well as a separate proposal as a stand alone company?
	No.  The Lottery will accept only one proposal from each bidding agency whether that bidding agency is part of a joint proposal or is a separate bidding agency. 

	44. Is there an opportunity to submit a joint proposal even if you had originally intended to submit a stand along proposal?
	Yes, you can submit a joint proposal that meets minimum qualifications. When submitting joint proposals at least one of the agencies must independently meet all of the Minimum Bidder Qualifications listed in Item C. Please refer to the page 9 of General Information, W. Joint Proposals for clarification.

	45. Are there media and fee budget parameters for the AA segment you can share?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	46. Is there any recent work targeting the AA segment you can share with the participants?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	47. Has there been a dedicated strategy and media plan for the AA segment?  If so, what can you share?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	48. Is the proposal date still set for May 8?
	Proposals are due to the Lottery for Phase I Bidder Submittals on May 8, 2020.

	49. Will the CL still be requiring the printed copies, in binder format, and USB drives to be mailed by May 8? Or will the reqs be amended to account for changes in mobility - for example, will we be able to email our entry for this phase?
	The Lottery will be amending this RFP to address this question. Agencies will be allowed to upload their proposals to a secure Lottery site. Please see Amendment 1 for additional information.

	50. Is it mandatory for the 3 years of AA experience to be local to California?
	No, qualified agencies must have a minimum of three years’ experience within AA Market.

	51. If submitting with a partner agency, and the partner agency is based outside of California, but we are based in California, is that partnership valid as long as the other reqs outlined are fulfilled?
	When submitting joint proposals at least one of the agencies must independently meet all of the Minimum Bidder Qualifications listed in Item C. Please refer to the page 9 of General Information, W. Joint Proposals for clarification.

	52. In addition to joint proposals, will the Lottery accept proposals from Agencies utilizing sub-contractors?
	Yes.

	53. How will campaigns be measured?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	54. Page 20 of RFP – Item 5b – Promotions – please provide examples of promotions executed for other ethnic outreach. i.e. Hispanic Community
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	55. Page 20 of RFP – item 5c – PR – please clarify if PR programs are paid media or value added or both?
	Public Relations (Optional): The Lottery may require its Agency to provide integrated PR capabilities in the areas of media relations, crisis communications, event management, and cross-cultural outreach.

	56. Page 25 – Exhibit B – Item 1 – Rate card and Terms of Payment – Lottery to pay media placement plus mark-up/fee and would that fee expected to be included in the compensation proposal?
	All media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of The Lottery’s Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath.

	57. Page 28 – Exhibit B – 5.5 – Full Compensation include the media buy/placement mark-up?
	All media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery’s Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath.

	58. Page 28 – Exhibit B – 5.7 – Name a circumstance or scenario where the Agency would be notified of Notice of Monies Due?
	Please reference Exhibit B – Draft Contract Terms and Conditions, 8.0 Expiration or termination of Contract, B for clarification:
In the event of termination for breach under this subsection, the Lottery may obtain a replacement Agency on an emergency or interim basis to provide the services and/or goods which Agency agreed to provide under this Contract. The Lottery will collect from Agency the difference between the compensation stated in this Contract and the actual cost to the Lottery of obtaining and utilizing an interim replacement Agency. The Lottery will also collect actual costs, including administrative expenses and re-procurement costs, incurred to process and procure a permanent replacement Agency. The Lottery will collect sums it is due by offsetting the amount from any payments due to Agency or by any other means.

	59. Page 33 – Exhibit B – Paragraph 2 – Agency required to reimburse Lottery for background checks? Why and historically, has any agency been asked to reimburse the Lottery for a background check?
	In recent years there has not been a situation where the Lottery has asked an agency to reimburse the Lottery for a background check.

	60. Page 40 – Exhibit B – 9.15 – Internal Control Audit – What type of report would be required from the external certified public accounting firm?
	Any accounting records requested that “pertain to the fulfillment of the Contract obligations, in accordance with GAAP, would address this requirement.  Defining specific reports would be up to the auditing accounting firm and/or the contract manager.

	61. What is the yearly and overall contract budget?
	The estimated total contract expenditure for the initial five-year term of this contract is $15 million, which does not include media buying. Additional funds for promotions and experiential marketing may be included in the overall budget, based on strategic objectives.

	62. Is the budget inclusive of media, production, influencers, experiential, and fees?
	The majority of media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath. The budget is inclusive of the services listed on page 19 and 20 of Exhibit A – Scope of Services.

	63. Can we allocate the budget how we see best? In other words, of the total African American budget, what amount is allocated towards dedicated African American media? If we assume the total market media plan will be designed to also reach African Americans, can the budget be used for production of targeted paid social assets, experiential, or an influencer program?
	Yes, the Lottery is looking to the agency for a recommendation on how to best allocate the budget. The estimated total contract expenditure for the initial five-year term of this contract is $15 million, which does not include media buying. Additional funds for promotions and experiential marketing may be included in the overall budget, based on strategic objectives. The majority of media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath.

	64. What is the payment structure? Is this a fee based retainer? If so, what amount needs to be allocated to production (and media)?
	Yes, it is a fee-based retainer. If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP.

	65. What constitutes a media buy? For example - do influencer programs and experiential executions fall under the media budget?
	Currently, the majority of media buying is done by Horizon Media as part of the Lottery's Lead Advertising Agency contract with David&Goliath. There are separate budgets allocated to GM Influencer programs and experiential executions. For segment specific efforts budgets might need to be supplemented out of GM budget.

	66. The RFP states media capabilities are optional. What is the expectation? Is the media agency planning and buying African American media? What is the role of the African American agency - support and advise only or actual planning and purchase (including traditional, digital, experiential and influencer programs)?
	The Lottery is looking to AA Agency partner to provide Integrated Marketing services. Please refer to page 19 of Exhibit A – Scope of Services, 3. Integrated Marketing for clarification. Media is part of Optional Associated Services and include: plan, buy, and implement holistic AA media plans and/or select media vehicles as necessary which may include television, radio, print, outdoor, digital social and in-store/retail advertising. 

	67. What will be the agency’s role in influencer programs?
	The Lottery uses AA influencers based on individual campaign objectives and agency’s role is to provide insights and recommendations, analyze opportunities and recommend strategies and tactics. 

	68. The RFP states, "develop and execute innovative brand and transaction focused African American creative." Does this mean we will need to create African American specific assets? To what extent is the creative to be “African American-focused?"
	Please refer to page 19 of Exhibit A – Scope of Services, 2. Creative for clarification.

	69. As a fun and entertainment brand, how does the Lottery see themselves in that space?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP.

	70. Which brands are within the current competitive landscape, and which brands are the Lottery striving to emulate? Does the Lottery have examples of successful benchmarks they are striving to exceed? Has Lottery taken a recent pulse of the African American sentiment towards the Brand?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	71. What PR needs is the Lottery looking for from their African American agency?
	The agency is not required to provide PR services, but the Lottery may request such services if necessary. Please share any relevant experience in this area in your submission.

	72. Is there an overarching strategy for the Lottery's owned social channels? How does that strategy intersect with the different creative agencies' marketing efforts?
	Social Media is managed collaboratively internally and with other agencies led by the Lottery. For AACM we are looking to the agency to contribute with a full strategy inclusive of all the elements to reach the AACM. Community management is handled in-house.

	73. Is there a list of partnerships (media/venue/etc.) that can be leveraged for planning with the AA segment?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 

	74. Is there a significant network of Black-owned retailers?
	If relevant, the Lottery will share this type of information with Finalists during the Finalist phase of this RFP. 
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